T |Reporting

Services

Earth Negotiations Bulletin
A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/mercury/inc5/

Vol. 28 No. 18

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Tuesday, 15 January 2013

MERCURY INCS HIGHLIGHTS:
MONDAY, 14 JANUARY 2013

On Monday, INCS5 delegates met in plenary in the morning
and afternoon. Contact groups on selected technical articles and
on financial resources and technical assistance convened in the
morning and evening. A contact group on emissions and releases
met in the afternoon, followed by a Friends of the Co-Chairs
group on the issue in the evening.

PLENARY

EMISSIONS AND RELEASES: INC4 contact group on
emissions and releases Co-Chair John Roberts (UK) introduced
a document requested by INC4 on mercury air emission
thresholds for facilities and information on releases to land and
water (UNEP(DTIE)Hg/INC.5/4). Several delegations supported
the Chair’s text as a basis for negotiations. GRULAC noted
incomplete regional coordination on emissions and releases.

IRAQ, supported by YEMEN, introduced a submission
(UNEP(DTIE)/Hg/INC.5/CRP.5) to: keep emissions and releases
in two separate articles; provide limit values for each source
category of emissions; and address all sources of releases.
NEPAL and MOLDOVA called for a single article on emissions
and releases. The PHILIPPINES stressed that flexible measures
are still binding ones.

The AFRICAN GROUP, the EU and the REPUBLIC OF
KOREA preferred option 1, which includes a list of control and/
or reduction measures. JAPAN, COLOMBIA, NORWAY, the
US and CANADA also preferred option 1, expressing openness
to considering certain elements from option 2, which provides
for nationally determined measures, with SWITZERLAND
suggesting incorporation of national plans within a certain
time period particularly for existing facilities. CANADA
explained that option 1 is clear, requires action on both new and
existing sources, and provides flexibility. URUGUAY called
for ambitious and efficient reduction measures to achieve the
convention’s objective.

BRAZIL, ARGENTINA, MEXICO, CUBA, BOLIVIA,
the DOMINICAN REPUBLIC, CHILE, CHINA, NEPAL and
INDIA favored option 2.

Article 10. Emissions: NORWAY emphasized the need to:
ensure that Article 10 delivers the necessary emission reductions;
discuss timeframes for reductions; and set a goal for emission
reductions from existing sources. The EU recommended setting
timelines for existing sources. JAPAN stated that implementation
of emission limit values not only for existing, but also
new, sources of emissions should be deemed of equivalent
effectiveness to best available techniques (BAT) and best
environmental practices (BEP); and recommended developing

clear and objective criteria for selecting emission sources. The
AFRICAN GROUP and SWITZERLAND recommended that
BAT and BEP be applicable to all new facilities and phased in
for existing sources.

The US, supported by SWITZERLAND, introduced a
submission on general guidance on BAT (UNEP(DTIE)/
Hg/INC.5/CRP.6) as a complement to the definition of BAT
developed at INC4. The US also underscored the need for:
mandatory requirements on new and existing sources; thresholds
for most significant sources of emissions; and continued
economic growth along with emission reductions from listed
mercury sources.

CHILE cautioned against setting thresholds without taking
into account the significance of the source for global mercury
emissions. INDONESIA cautioned against setting global
thresholds, and with ARGENTINA highlighted difficulties in
setting thresholds for specific sectors. CHINA favored focusing
on major sources of emissions. CANADA, with IPEN, noted
that a facility’s size is not necessarily an indication of the
amount of mercury emissions.

Article 11. Releases: The EU noted that article 9 on ASGM
addresses the most obvious sources of releases, and that
article 11 should cover sources of major concern. The US and
CANADA noted that major sources are covered in articles on
products and processes, storage and waste, and ASGM.

Noting that the Arctic acts as a sink for anthropogenic
mercury, the INUIT CIRCUMPOLAR COUNCIL drew attention
to measurable health effects on Inuit children and, with ZMWG,
urged mandatory action and controls on all, both new and
existing, sources of emissions and releases. IPEN cautioned that
the current article on emissions will not reduce global mercury
pollution.

A contact group was established, co-chaired by John Roberts
(UK) and Abdulkadir Jailani (Indonesia), focusing on: whether
to merge articles 10 and 11; the use of thresholds as a means of
screening sources to be addressed in the instrument; developing
text on a rigorous and flexible approach, rather than focusing on
option | or 2; and sources of releases to land and water.

SUPPLY AND TRADE: The EU, supported by NORWAY,
introduced a submission (UNEP(DTIE)/Hg/INC.5/CRP.4)
proposing a new annex on supply sources, including chlor-
alkali production facilities, and a phase-out deadline for primary
mining. The PHILIPPINES stressed the need to prevent mercury
from such facilities from entering the market. The US and
BRAZIL called for equal treatment of all secondary sources.

The US called for eliminating primary mining of mercury.
CHINA opposed restricting existing mines. SWITZERLAND
called for: banning opening of new mines; allowing export

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@jiisd.org> is written and edited by Pia M. Kohler, Ph.D., Elisa Morgera, Ph.D., Keith Ripley,
Nicole Schabus and Elsa Tsioumani. The Digital Editor is Francis Dejon. The Editors are Jessica Templeton, Ph.D., and Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D.
<pam@iisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of
the Bulletin are the European Commission (DG-ENV), the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the German Federal Ministry for Economic
Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), and the
Government of Australia. General Support for the Bulletin during 2013 is provided by the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, the Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for
Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies - IGES), and the United Nations
Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for translation of the Bulletin into French has been provided by the Government of France, the Belgium
Walloon Region, Québec, and the International Organization of the Francophone (OIF and IEPF). The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those

of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate
academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>,
+1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11D, New York, NY 10022 USA. The ENB team at INCS5 can be contacted by e-mail at <elisa@iisd.org>.




T |Reportin
2|Services

Tuesday, 15 January 2013

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Vol. 28 No. 18 Page 2

of mercury from existing mines only for final disposal, with
specific uses allowed only in the domestic market; and a uniform
trade regime for parties and non-parties. JAPAN suggested

the exception regarding naturally occurring trace quantities in
mineral products also cover unintentional trace quantities and
chemical products.

The AFRICAN GROUP highlighted, inter alia, prohibition
of trade without PIC, and more stringent conditions for trade
with non-parties than with parties. COLOMBIA and the
PHILIPPINES noted PIC is a very important tool, while the
US and CANADA opposed the proposed PIC scheme. JAPAN
preferred a mechanism similar to that of the Stockholm and
Rotterdam Conventions. CHILE called for clear language to
avoid setting a precedent regarding other mining activities.

The National Resources Defense Council (NRDC) noted
that only chlor-alkali plants in the EU and US are prevented
from sending mercury overseas, and warned against mercury
dumping. IPEN said primary mercury mining should be banned;
export prohibited, including to non-parties; and PIC procedures
required.

ASGM: The US introduced a submission (UNEP(DTIE)/Hg/
INC.5/CRP.2), supported by the EU, to allow trade in mercury
for ASGM with the written consent of the importing party or
non-party, and certification that the import is consistent with a
party’s ASGM action plan and progress reports, or certification
that the non-party is taking steps to reduce use of mercury in,
and the release to the environment of mercury from, ASGM and
processing. JAPAN requested developing a specific process for
imports of mercury for ASGM.

The PHILIPPINES expressed concern that the Chair’s text
contained no limits on mercury use in ASGM. The AFRICAN
GROUP called for developing text on the reduction and eventual
phase-out of mercury use in ASGM. SWITZERLAND and
PERU suggested clarifying that ASGM is a “permitted use”
under the treaty. NORWAY, GUYANA and SWITZERLAND
proposed to gradually reduce trade in mercury for ASGM and for
the COP to review and decide when trade is no longer allowed.
BRAZIL warned against negative incentives that could result in a
mercury black market and use of more harmful substances.

ZMWG underscored the need to clearly indicate that ASGM-
related trade and use will not continue indefinitely. IPEN
requested prohibiting mercury trade for ASGM.

STORAGE, WASTES AND CONTAMINATED SITES:
Article 13. Mercury wastes: The PHILIPPINES called for
binding requirements for storage and environmentally sound
management of mercury wastes. SWITZERLAND recommended
making reference not only to the definitions, but also to the
procedures on transboundary movements, from the Basel
Convention; and clarifying the term “disposal” in accordance
with the Basel Convention. LEBANON called for specific
standards for mercury waste disposal. CHILE called for a clear
definition of mercury “wastes.” The EU underscored the need
to develop guidance, in cooperation with the Basel Convention,
to clarify the level of mercury content that would trigger the
application of the waste provisions of the mercury treaty.

SWITZERLAND, NORWAY and the EU, opposed by
JAPAN, proposed to request, rather than allow, the COP to
adopt requirements such as those related to wastes facility
location, design and operation, and adequate treatment before
final disposal. SWITZERLAND, NORWAY, COLOMBIA and
the AFRICAN GROUP favored lifting brackets around text on
applying controls equivalent to those in the Basel Convention
to non-parties to that Convention. The US called for a flexible
approach based on the development of technical guidance on

environmentally sound management, to avoid difficulties for
non-parties to the Basel Convention to become parties to the
mercury instrument.

Article 12. Environmentally sound interim storage of
mercury, other than waste mercury: The EU recommended
requesting, rather than allowing, the COP to adopt requirements
for storage. BRAZIL requested the guidelines to be adopted by
the COP to be flexible to accommodate developing countries’
diverse circumstances. IPEN recommended that the COP adopt a
guidance document on interim storage and provide for capacity
building and technology transfer for environmentally sound
storage.

Article 14. Contaminated sites: JAPAN called for deleting
the paragraph on cooperation and financial and technical
assistance. BRAZIL, IRAN and MOROCCO requested retaining
the provision, pending parallel discussions on financial resources
and technical assistance. IPEN urged mandatory language on
parties identifying and cleaning up contaminated sites and for
financial assistance in that regard.

CONTACT GROUP ON FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

In the morning, the contact group focused on technology
transfer, discussing whether Article 16 bis (technology transfer)
and Article 16 (technical assistance) could be merged, with many
developing countries noting the importance of a detailed free-
standing provision.

Chair Guthrie then proposed to have a provision on the
tasks of the COP, such as assessing needs and the current
status of technology transfer, and identifying obstacles and
best practices. Delegates also discussed whether obligations
should be addressed to all parties, or to developed countries
and other parties within their capabilities. Delegates discussed
whether to “provide” or “promote” technology transfer and
whether to do so on a “concessional or preferential basis” or on
a “mutually agreed” basis. Some indicated that they could agree
to compromise language from the Rio+ 20 outcome document
to do so “on favorable terms, including on concessional and
preferential terms, as mutually agreed.” A number of developed
countries opposed, preferring using text on technology transfer
from the Stockholm Convention. Discussions continued into the
night.

CONTACT GROUP ON EMISSIONS AND RELEASES

Participants broached consideration of thresholds, including
how to define and express them, and agreed that a smaller group
of technical experts would discuss the issue further on Tuesday.
The group also considered the US submission on general
guidance on BAT, with some countries noting such guidance
should come at a later date. In an effort to find common ground
between the two options presented in the Chair’s text, the
group discussed new and existing sources separately, with some
agreement emerging that there should be more flexibility for
existing sources.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Delegates got down to brass tacks on Monday as contact
groups started work on what are widely acknowledged as the
two lynchpin areas of the negotiations: financing and technical
assistance, and emissions and releases. While many noted that
these groups worked hard and made sure they did not overstep
their respective mandates, another participant predicted, “only
tying everything together at the right moment, in the right way,
will bring the right result.”




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


